
 

 

VIA EDIS 

767 Fifth Avenue
New York, NY 10153-0119

+1 212 310 8000 tell
+1 212 310 8007 fax

 

January 28, 2022 

Anish R. Desai
+1 (212) 310-8730

anish.desai@weil.com

 

The Honorable Lisa R. Barton 
Secretary to the Commission 
U.S. International Trade Commission 
500 E Street, S.W., Room 112 
Washington, D.C. 20436 

Re:  In the Matter of Certain Fungicide Products Containing Pyraclostrobin and                  
 Components Thereof  

 
Dear Secretary Barton:   
 
 In accordance with the Commission’s Temporary Change to the Filing Procedures, dated March 
19, 2020, Complainants BASF SE and BASF Corporation (together, “BASF” or “Complainants”), are 
submitting via EDIS, the following documents in support of Complainants’ request that the Commission 
commence an investigation pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended.   
 
 Pursuant to the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure, a request for confidential 
treatment for the Confidential Verified Complaint and Confidential Exhibits 4C, 6C, 9C, 14C, 26C, 30C 
– 33C, and 35C, is also included with this submission.  Accordingly, Complainants submit the 
following:   
 

1. An electronic copy of BASF’s Non-Confidential Verified Complaint, pursuant to 
Commission Rule 210.8(a)(1)(i);  

2. An electronic copy of BASF’s Confidential Verified Complaint, pursuant to Commission 
Rules  201.6(c) and 210.8(a)(1)(i); 

3. An electronic copy of BASF’s Non-Confidential Statement of Public Interest, pursuant to 
Commission Rule 210.8(b); 

4. An electronic copy of the public exhibits to the Verified Complaint, pursuant to Commission 
Rule 210.4(f) and 210.8(a);  

5. An electronic copy of the confidential exhibits to the Verified Complaint pursuant to 
Commission Rules 201.6(c), 210.4(f), and 210.8(a);  
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6. An electronic copy of the certified version of United States Patent No. 7,816,392 (“the ’392 
Patent”), listed as Exhibit 1 in the Verified Complaint, pursuant to Commission Rule 
210.12(a)(9)(i);  

7. An electronic copy of the certified assignments for the ’392, listed as Exhibit 2 in the 
Verified Complaint, pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(ii);  

8. An electronic copy of the certified prosecution history for the ’392 patent, listed as Appendix 
A in Verified Complaint, pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(c)(1);  

9. An electronic copy of the technical references identified in the prosecution history of the 
’392 patent, listed as Appendix B in the Verified Complaint, pursuant to Commission Rule 
210.12(c)(2); and 

10. An electronic copy of a letter of certification, pursuant to Commission Rules 201.6(b) and 
210.5(d), requesting confidential treatment of information appearing in the Confidential 
Verified Complaint and Confidential Exhibits 4C, 6C, 9C, 14C, 26C, 30C - 33C, and 35C to 
the Verified Complaint. 

 Complainants confirm that the proposed Respondents will be served copies of the non-
confidential version of the Complaint and all associated public exhibits and appendices upon the 
institution of this investigation, consistent with 19 C.F.R. part 201 (including 19 C.F.R. § 201.16) and 
the Temporary Procedures. 
 
 Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions regarding this submission.  Thank you 
for your time and attention to this matter. 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
/s/ Anish R. Desai                    / 
Anish R. Desai 
Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP 
767 5th Avenue 
New York, NY 10153 
Telephone: (212) 310-8000 
anish.desai@weil.com 
 
Counsel for Complainants BASF SE and BASF 
Corporation 
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January 28, 2022 

Anish Desai
+1 (212) 310-8730

anish.desai@weil.com

 

VIA EDIS 
 
The Honorable Lisa R. Barton 
Secretary to the Commission 
U.S. International Trade Commission 
500 E Street S.W., Room 112A 
Washington, DC 20436 
 
Re: In the Matter of Certain Fungicide Products Containing Pyraclostrobin and  
 Components Thereof 
 
Dear Secretary Barton:  
 

In accordance with 19 C.F.R. §§ 201.6 and 210.5, Complainants BASF SE and BASF 
Corporation (together, “BASF” or “Complainants”), respectfully requests confidential treatment for the 
business information contained in the Confidential Verified Complaint and in Confidential Exhibits 4C, 
6C, 9C, 14C, 26C, 30C – 33C, and 35C, filed herewith.  

 
The information in the complaint and exhibits consists of proprietary commercial information, 

including confidential and proprietary financial data regarding Complainants’ domestic investments in 
plant and equipment and labor and capital related to domestic articles protected by Complainants’ 
Asserted Patent, confidential information about the design and operation of the domestic articles, and 
confidential information regarding licensing the Asserted Patent. 
 
 The proprietary information described herein qualifies as confidential business information under 
19 C.F.R. §201.6(a) because: 
 
 1.  It is not available to the public;  
 
 2.  Unauthorized disclosure of such information could cause substantial harm to the competitive 
 position of Complainants; and 
 
 3.  The disclosure of such information could impair the Commission's ability to obtain 
 information necessary to perform its statutory function.   
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 Please contact me with any questions regarding this request for confidential treatment.  Thank 
you for your attention with this matter. 
 
 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
/s/ Anish R. Desai                    / 
Anish R. Desai 
Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP 
767 5th Avenue 
New York, NY 10153 
Telephone: (212) 310-8000 
Email: anish.desai@weil.com 
 
Counsel for Complainants BASF SE and BASF 
Corporation 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 



 

UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 

 
 

IN THE MATTER OF 
 
CERTAIN PRODUCTS CONTAINING 
PYRACLOSTROBIN AND COMPONENTS 
THEREOF 

Investigation No. 337-TA-___ 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
 I, Anish R. Desai, counsel for Complainants BASF SE and BASF Corporation  
 
(“Complainants”), declare as follows: 
 
 1. I am duly authorized by Complainants to execute this certification. 
  
 2. I have reviewed the Confidential Verified Complaint and Confidential Exhibits  
  4C, 6C, 9C, 14C, 26C, 30C – 33C, and 35C, for which the Complainants seek  
  confidential treatment of their confidential business information. 
 
 3.   To the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, the confidential information 
  contained in the Confidential Verified Complaint and Confidential Exhibits is not  
  available to the public. 
 
 I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 
 
 
Dated: January 28, 2022    Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
  /s/ Anish R. Desai                     1 

Anish R. Desai 
WEIL, GOTSHAL & MANGES LLP 
767 5th Avenue 
New York, NY 10153 
Telephone: (212) 310-8000 
anish.desai@weil.com 
 
Counsel for Complainants BASF SE and  
BASF Corporation 
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UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 

 
 

IN THE MATTER OF 
 
CERTAIN PRODUCTS CONTAINING 
PYRACLOSTROBIN AND COMPONENTS 
THEREOF 

Investigation No. 337-TA-___ 

 
COMPLAINANTS’ STATEMENT REGARDING THE PUBLIC INTEREST 

 
Complainants BASF SE and BASF Corporation (collectively, “BASF”) hereby submit 

this Statement Regarding the Public Interest under 19 C.F.R. § 210.8(b).  

I. INTRODUCTION 

The issuance of the requested relief, including a limited exclusion order and a cease and 

desist order, would not adversely impact the public health and welfare in the United States, 

competitive conditions in the United States economy, the production of like or directly 

competitive articles in the United States, or United States consumers. Indeed, the requested relief 

does not present an instance where a compelling public interest might (i) supersede institution of 

the investigation, (ii) warrant delegation of the public interest factors to the Administrative Law 

Judge, or (iii) supersede the entry of a statutory exclusion order and cease and desist order upon 

finding of a violation.  

First, the proposed Respondents have not yet commercially launched the Accused 

Products (as defined in the complaint) in the United States. The proposed Respondents could 

therefore have no basis to allege that any public interest concern weighs against institution or the 

relief sought by BASF, as no one is currently using the Accused Products in the United States. 

Second, the proposed Respondents’ products containing pyraclostrobin do not implicate any 

particular public health, safety, or welfare concern. Although BASF’s Domestic Industry Products 
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(as defined in the complaint) are important to the agriculture industry and plant health, the 

proposed Respondents do not yet have any commercially available Accused Products that any 

customer or farmer is presently dependent upon. And third, customers for the relevant products 

will not face any potential shortage of like or directly competitive products in the United States as 

a result of the proposed remedies. Rather, BASF and its competitors will simply continue to 

supply products that would be subject to the requested remedial orders.  

In summary, the requested Investigation does not present any special issues of public 

interest that would affect the Commission’s issuance of the requested remedial orders. Nor does 

the requested Investigation present an instance where the Administrative Law Judge, the parties, 

or the public should be required to undergo the time and expense of discovery or a hearing on the 

public interest under 19 C.F.R. 210.50(b)(1). To the contrary, the compelling public interest of 

encouraging and protecting innovation supports the entry of a statutory exclusion order and a 

cease and desist order, and the harm to BASF’s significant investments in the innovative 

technology at issue overrides any public interest concern. 

II. PUBLIC INTEREST CONSIDERATIONS 

The Commission has articulated a strong public interest in protecting intellectual property 

rights. Certain Broadband Processor Chips and Chipsets, Transmitter and Receiver (Radio) 

Chips, Power Control Chips, Inv. No. 337-TA-543, Comm’n Op., 2007 ITC LEXIS 621, at *240 

(June 19, 2007). The few instances where the Commission has denied relief based on the public 

interest involve facts not present here, namely, where “inadequate supply within the United 

States—by both the patentee and domestic licensees—meant that an exclusion order would 

deprive the public of products necessary for some important health or welfare need….” Spansion, 
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Inc. v. ITC, 629 F.3d 1331, 1360 (Fed. Cir. 2010). Thus, as set forth below, the requested 

Investigation presents no public interest concerns. 

A. How the Accused Articles Are Used in the United States 

Respondents’ products potentially subject to remedial orders in the proposed Investigation 

are products containing pyraclostrobin. Developed and patented by BASF, pyraclostrobin is a 

break-through fungicidal chemical for use (1) in disease control and plant health in a variety of 

plants, (2) as a seed technology for disease control and plant health in a variety of crops, and (3) 

as a drench for soil borne disease control and improved plant health, for example in the 

production of ornamentals. Pyraclostrobin is registered for numerous outdoor terrestrial and food 

uses, including as a seed treatment on corn and soybeans.  

On information and belief, although the proposed Respondents have imported the Accused 

Products into the United States for regulatory approval, they have not yet been commercially 

launched for sale and are thus not used in the United States by consumers. 

B. There Are No Public Health, Safety, or Welfare Concerns Relating to the 
Requested Remedial Orders 

The requested relief would not raise any public health, safety, or welfare issues of the kind 

that the Commission historically has recognized as an overriding concern. See Certain Personal 

Data & Mobile Commc’ns Devices & Related Software, Inv. No. 337-TA-710, Comm’n Op. at 73 

(Dec. 29, 2011) (explaining that the Commission “has historically examined whether ‘an 

exclusion order would deprive the public of products necessary for some important health or 

welfare need: energy efficient automobiles, basic scientific research, or hospital equipment’”).  

Here, although the relevant articles are important to plant health, there is no threat to the 

public interest because the Accused Products are not yet being used in the United States and 

alternatives are readily available. Moreover, the proposed Respondents’ practices could actually 
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pose a threat to the public health. In this regard, BASF employs dedicated people in the field to 

ensure that its Domestic Industry Products are used responsibly and do not pose a threat to 

wildlife. Generic companies like the proposed Respondents are not known to make similar 

investments in such stewardship. 

C. BASF and Third Parties Supply Like or Directly Competitive Articles 
that Could Replace the Accused Products 

BASF is well-poised to supply directly competitive articles that could replace the Accused 

Products. Indeed, the Domestic Industry Products represent a significant pillar in BASF’s 

fungicide portfolio, containing top-of-the line fungicidal products such as Headline® SC, 

Headline® AMP, Priaxor® SC, Merivon® Xemium®, Veltyma™, Revytek™, Pristine, and 

Cabrio® EG. With over twenty product lines for the Domestic Industry Products and two dozen 

individual products, BASF has continued to find new methods of combining pyraclostrobin with 

BASF’s other fungicidal active ingredients to tailor products for farmer needs. BASF’s domestic 

sales of the Domestic Industry Products are increasing, and in the event a remedy issues, BASF 

can supply competitive products to future customers of the proposed Respondents. 

On information and belief, third parties could also supply competitive replacement 

products in the event that the proposed remedies issue. BASF’s largest direct competitors for 

fungicides are Syngenta and Bayer Crop Science. Both of these companies produce strobilurin 

fungicides approved for similar crop uses. Pyraclostrobin is within the strobilurin class of 

chemicals. 

D. BASF and Third Parties Have the Capacity to Replace the Volume of 
Articles Subject to the Requested Relief in a Commercially Reasonable 
Time in the United States 

All of the Domestic Industry Products are made in the United States, either by BASF itself 

or by its tollers. In the event that the proposed remedies issue, BASF and its tollers will continue 
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producing the Domestic Industry Products in the United States, and can sell these products to the 

proposed Respondents’ potential customers. BASF likewise expects that its competitors can 

supply similar products to the proposed Respondents’ potential customers. 

E. The Requested Relief Would Not Impact Consumers 

As indicated above, the Accused Products have not launched for commercial sale in the 

United States. Thus, the proposed relief would not negatively impact consumers, who have a 

variety of substitute products already available to them from BASF and third parties.  

III. CONCLUSION 

The Accused Products are not necessary to any public health, safety, or welfare need, and 

alternative products are available. As such, the strong public interest in protecting BASF’s 

intellectual property rights outweighs any potential adverse public interest effects from the 

requested remedial orders.  

Dated: January 28, 2022    Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
  /s/ Anish R. Desai                     1 

Elizabeth S. Weiswasser 
Anish R. Desai 
Anna E. Dwyer 
Caleb Small 
WEIL, GOTSHAL & MANGES LLP 
767 5th Avenue 
New York, NY 10153 
Telephone: (212) 310-8000 
 
Robert T. Vlasis III 
Priyata Y. Patel 
WEIL, GOTSHAL & MANGES LLP 
2001 M Street NW, Suite 600 
Washington, DC 20036 
Telephone: (202) 682-7000 
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I. INTRODUCTION 

1. Complainants BASF SE and BASF Corporation (collectively, “BASF” or 

“Complainants”) request that the United States International Trade Commission institute an 

investigation pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337, to 

remedy the unlawful importation into the United States, sale for importation into the United 

States, and/or sale within the United States after importation by the owner, importer, or consignee 

(or agents thereof), of certain products containing pyraclostrobin and components thereof that 

infringe BASF’s valid and enforceable U.S. Patent No. 7,816,392 (“the ’392 patent” or “Asserted 

Patent”). 

2. Proposed Respondents Sharda Cropchem Ltd. and Sharda USA LLC (collectively 

“Sharda” or “Respondents”) have engaged in unfair acts in violation of Section 337 through and 

in connection with the unlicensed importation into the United States, sale for importation into the 

United States, and/or sale within the United States after importation of certain products containing 

pyraclostrobin and components thereof that infringe or are made by means of a process covered 

by claims 1-17 of the ’392 patent (collectively, the “Asserted Claims”).   

3. BASF seeks as relief, a permanent limited exclusion order barring from entry into 

the United States certain products containing pyraclostrobin and components thereof by or on 

behalf of Sharda. BASF also seeks as relief, permanent cease and desist orders prohibiting the 

importation, sale, offer for sale, advertising, marketing, distributing, or the solicitation of any sale 

by each Respondent of certain products containing pyraclostrobin and components thereof 

covered by the Asserted Claims. 

II. COMPLAINANTS 

4. BASF is in the business of researching, developing, testing and/or selling 
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numerous types of products and technologies in the agrochemical field. BASF has spent 

substantial resources researching and ultimately developing pyraclostrobin, a break-through 

fungicidal chemical for use (1) in disease control and plant health in a variety of plants, (2) as a 

seed technology for disease control and plant health in a variety of crops, and (3) as a drench for 

soil borne disease control and improved plant health in production ornamentals.  

A. BASF SE 

5. Complainant BASF SE is a German societas europaea company organized under 

the laws of the European Union with headquarters and principal place of business at Carl-Bosch-

Str. 38, 67056 Ludwigshafen, Germany. BASF SE is the owner by assignment of the entire right, 

title and interest in the Asserted Patent and has licensed the Asserted Patent to BASF Corporation. 

See Confidential Ex. 9C. BASF SE is the parent corporation of BASF Corporation. See Ex. 7.  

6. BASF SE develops, manufactures, markets, and distributes various crop protection 

products, including market-leading fungicides helping farmers protect crops against key fungal 

diseases in an ever-changing global climate. 

B. BASF Corporation 

7. Complainant BASF Corporation is a Delaware corporation with headquarters and 

principal place of business at 100 Campus Drive, Florham Park, New Jersey 07932.  BASF 

Corporation is a wholly owned subsidiary of BASF SE. See Exhibit 7. BASF Corporation is a 

licensee of the Asserted Patent.  See Confidential Ex. 9C.   

8. BASF Corporation has domestic investments as to the ’392 patent, including 

significant investments in plant and equipment, significant employment of labor and capital, and 

substantial investments in the exploitation of the ’392 patent through research and development. 

As just one example, BASF Corporation owns and operates a production facility in Sparks, 
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Georgia where it formulates products that practice the Asserted Patent.  

III. PROPOSED RESPONDENTS 

A. Sharda Cropchem Ltd. 

9. Upon information and belief, Proposed Respondent Sharda Cropchem Ltd. is a 

public limited company incorporated in India with headquarters and principal place of business at 

Prime Business Park, 2nd Floor, Dashrathlal Joshi Road, Vile Parle (W), Mumbai, Maharashtra 

400056, India. See Ex. 10. Upon information and belief, Sharda Chropchem Ltd. is a global 

agrochemicals company focusing on generic crop protection products. Upon information and 

belief, Sharda Cropchem Ltd.’s portfolio includes various fungicides, which it manufactures, 

distributes, markets, imports, sells, sells for importation, and exports to the United States and 

which infringe the Asserted Patent.  

B. Sharda USA LLC 

10. Upon information and belief, Proposed Respondent Sharda USA LLC is a 

limited liability corporation incorporated in Delaware with headquarters and principal place of 

business at 34 E, Germantown Pike #227, Norristown, PA 19401. See Ex. 11; Ex. 12. Upon 

information and belief, Sharda USA LLC is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sharda Cropchem 

Ltd. See Ex. 13. Upon information and belief, Sharda USA LLC manufactures, distributes, 

markets, imports, and sells various crop protection products, including fungicides containing 

pyraclostrobin.  

IV. THE PRODUCTS AT ISSUE 

11. Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(12), the products at issue are products 

containing crystalline modification IV of pyraclostrobin and components thereof imported into 

the United States, sold for importation into the United States, and/or sold within the United 

PUBLIC VERSION



 

4 
 

 

States after importation by or on behalf of Respondents that infringe or are made by a 

process covered by the Asserted Claims of the ’392 patent. The ’392 patent relates to 

crystalline modification IV of pyraclostrobin, compositions containing crystalline 

modification IV of pyraclostrobin, processes for preparing crystalline modification IV of 

pyraclostrobin, and methods of treatment to use crystalline modification IV of 

pyraclostrobin.   

12. BASF makes and sells fungicide products containing crystalline 

modification IV of pyraclostrobin that are covered by or are made by a process covered by 

claims of the ’392 patent. These products include (collectively, “Domestic Industry 

Products”): Headline® SC, Headline® AMP, Priaxor® SC Xemium®, Merivon® Xemium®, 

Veltyma™, Revytek™, Pristine®, Cabrio® EG, Lexicon® Intrinsic®, Navicon® Intrinsic®, 

Insignia®, Insignia® SC Intrinsic®, Empress™, Intrinsic®, Orkestra® Intrinsic®, Pillar® G 

Intrinsic®, Pageant® Intrinsic®, Honor®, Intrinsic®, Obvius®, Obvius® Plus, Acceleron® 

D-109, Acceleron® DX-109, Stamina®, Stamina® F4, Teraxxa™ F4, Dyax®, Bellis®, 

Delit®, Delit® Pro, Insure® Pulse, Insure® Cereal and Comet®. 

13. Sharda makes and sells products, that upon information and belief, contain 

and/or use crystalline modification IV of pyraclostrobin that infringes claims of the ’392 

patent and are made by a process covered by claims of the ’392 patent. The accused Sharda 

products, include but are not limited to, Sharda Boscalid 25.2% + Pyraclostrobin 12.8% WG 

(EPA Reg. No. 83529-178) and Sharda Boscalid 25.2% + Pyraclostrobin 12.8% WG II (EPA 

Reg. No. 83529-179) and various technical and end-use products for which Sharda seeks 

regulatory approval: (1) “Sharda Pyraclostrobin 20% WG;” (2) “Sharda Pyraclostrobin 25% 
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EC,” marketed and sold abroad as PREACH™1; (3) “Sharda Pyraclostrobin 20% SC;” and 

(4) “Sharda Pyraclostrobin Technical” (collectively, “Accused Products”). 

14. Upon information and belief, Sharda has filed for regulatory approval of 

pyraclostrobin technical and end use registrations with the EPA. Ex. 14C; Ex. 16 (submitting 

studies on 7/29/2020 and 7/14/2021 to support application for registration of “Sharda 

Pyraclostrobin 25% EC,” on 8/4/2020 to support application for registration of “Sharda 

Pyraclostrobin Technical,” on 5/20/2021 to support applications for registration of “Sharda 

Pyraclostrobin 12.8% + Boscalid 25.2% WG,” and on 6/8/2021 to support application for 

registration of “Sharda Pyraclostrobin 20% WG.”).  

15.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

.  

                                                 
1 Upon information and belief, “Sharda Pyraclostrobin 25% EC” is equivalent to PREACH™.  
Compare Exhibit 16 (listing studies submitted by Sharda USA LLC to support registration of 
“Sharda Pyraclostrobin 25% EC,” i.e. a fungicide product containing pyraclostrobin at 
concentration of 25% in an EC formulation) with, Exhibit 18 (indicating that “PREACH™” is an 
“EC” formulation containing “Pyraclostrobin 250 g/L,” i.e. at a concentration of 25%).  
Therefore, Sharda’s infringing product for which it seeks regulatory approval in the U.S. is 
referred to herein as Sharda Pyraclostrobin 25% EC or PREACH™ interchangeably. 
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16.  

 

 

 

 

 

  

17.  

 

 

 

  Id.   

18. On November 10, 2021, the EPA approved Sharda’s end-use registrations for 

Sharda Boscalid 25.2% + Pyraclostrobin 12.8% WG (EPA Reg. No. 83529-178) and Sharda 

Boscalid 25.2% + Pyraclostrobin 12.8% WG II (EPA Reg. No. 83529-179).  Exs. 63-64. 

19. The products identified herein are merely illustrative of the type of infringing 

products that Sharda manufactures and imports into the United States, sells for importation 

into the United States, and/or sells within the United States after importation in violation of 

Section 337. BASF’s identification of exemplary products is not intended, either implicitly or 

explicitly, to limit the scope of the investigation or the scope of the relief to which BASF is 

entitled.   
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V. THE ASSERTED PATENTS  

A. The ’392 Patent 

1. Identification and Ownership of the ’392 Patent 

20. The ’392 patent is entitled “Crystalline modifications to pyraclostrobin” and 

names Hans Ziegler, Winfried Mayer, Thomas Kröhl, Karl-Heinrich Schneider, Gerhard 

Cox, Peter Erk, Uwe Josef Vogelbacher, Rainer Noack, Roland Götz, Jörg Wuckelt, Matthias 

Rauls as inventors. As required by Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(i), a certified copy of the 

’392 patent is attached as Ex. 1. The ’392 patent issued on October 19, 2010, based on U.S. 

App. No. 11/917,976, filed on December 18, 2007. The ’392 patent expires on February 3, 

2027. 

21. BASF SE owns by assignment the entire right, title, and interest to and in the 

’392 patent and has licensed the patent to BASF corporation. As required by Commission 

Rule 210.12(a)(9)(ii), a copy of the assignment history for the parent application to the ’392 

patent is attached as Ex. 2.   

22. Together with this Complaint, BASF has filed a certified copy and three (3) 

additional copies of the prosecution history of the ’392 patent (Application Serial No. 

11/917,976) as Appendix A. BASF has also filed as Appendix B four (4) copies of the patent 

and technical references identified in the prosecution history of the application leading to the 

issuance of the ’392 patent. 

2. Foreign Counterparts to the ’392 Patent 

23. Ex. 3 lists each foreign patent and each pending foreign patent application (not 

already issued as a patent), and each foreign patent application that has been denied, 

abandoned, or withdrawn, which contains a disclosure corresponding to the ’392 patent, with 
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an indication of the prosecution status of each such patent application. No other foreign 

counterparts to the ’392 patent have been filed, abandoned, withdrawn, or rejected. 

3. Licensees Under the ’392 Patent 

24. A list of each licensee under the ’392 patent is included as Confidential Ex. 9C. 

4. Non-Technical Description of the ’392 Patent 

25. The ’392 patent generally discloses and claims a crystalline modification IV of 

pyraclostrobin as well as compositions based on the same, processes for making a crystalline 

modification IV of pyraclostrobin, and a method of using the same for controlling 

phytopathogenic fungi. The ’392 patent describes various forms of pyraclostrobin, including 

crystalline modifications I, II, III, and IV, but discloses that crystalline modification IV is 

particularly suitable for preparing crop protection compositions and for preparing aqueous 

suspension concentrates. See, e.g., ’392 patent, 10:55-58. The advantages associated with the use 

of crystalline modifications IV include, but are not limited to, the surprising improvement in the 

storage stability of suspension concentrates if they are prepared using crystalline modification IV 

as compared to using another form of pyraclostrobin. See, e.g., id. at 22:55-25:40. The ’392 patent 

further describes crystalline modification IV of pyraclostrobin as showing at least three of five 

enumerated reflexes in an X-ray powder diffractogram measured at 25 °C. 

VI. UNLAWFUL AND UNFAIR ACTS OF RESPONDENTS’ PATENT 
INFRINGEMENT 

A. Direct Infringement 

26. Upon information and belief, Sharda imports, sells for importation, and/or sells 

in the United States after importation products containing pyraclostrobin and components 

thereof that infringe claims 1-3, and 15-17 of the ’392 patent and are made by a process 
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covered by claims 4-14 of the ’392 patent, which are unlawful activities pursuant to 19 

U.S.C. § 1337(a)(1)(B)(i) and (ii).  

27. Confidential Exs. 4C and 5 are claim charts that, respectively, apply independent 

claims 1, 15, and 17 of the ’392 patent to the Sharda Pyraclostrobin 20% WG, and Sharda 

Pyraclostrobin 25% EC (or PREACH) products.  

B. Indirect Infringement 

28. Upon information and belief, Sharda currently actively induces and has 

induced infringement of the Asserted Patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 271(b) through, among 

other things, the importation and sale in the United States of products containing 

pyraclostrobin to customers and end users with the specific intent that the Accused Products 

be used in an infringing manner.  

29. Upon information and belief, Sharda has had knowledge of the ’392 patent and 

knowledge that the use of the Accused Products by customers and end users according to the 

labels included with Sharda’s products containing pyraclostrobin infringes claims of the ’392 

patent since at least the filing of this Complaint.  

30. For example, Sharda has represented in marketing materials that PREACH™ 

uses the “same active ingredient as Headline.” Ex. 18. One of the products in the Headline® 

product family, Headline® SC, is marked with the ’392 patent:   
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Ex. 19 

 
31. Upon information and belief,  

 

 

32. As detailed in Confidential Exs. 4C and 5, the use of Sharda Pyraclostrobin 

20% WG and Sharda Pyraclostrobin 25% EC or PREACH™ products constitutes direct 

infringement of at least claims 1, 15 and 17 of the ’392 patent. The supply of those products 

therefore induces customers to use the Accused Products in an infringing manner. Respondents 

have encouraged customers and end users to use the Accused Products in an infringing manner by 

providing labels instructing customers and end users to use the Accused Products in an infringing 

manner.  

33. The PREACH™ label directs customers to apply PREACH™ to various crops in 

order to treat diseases caused by phytopathogenic fungi. Ex. 20. The label directs customers to 
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apply PREACH™ at an application rate of “0.3-0.6” L/ha, for instance, onto “[w]heat” crops to 

prevent and treat “[l]eaf rust” caused by the phytopathogenic fungus “Puccinia recondita.” Ex. 

20. In order to control pathogenic fungi, the PREACH™ label encourages, recommends, and/or 

instructs customers to perform the step of contacting a plant, seed, or soil in need of treatment 

with a crystalline form of modification IV of pyraclostrobin. Ex. 20.   

34.  

 

. 

For instance, the label for BASF’s fungicide product Cabrio® EG Fungicide covered by EPA 

Reg. No. 7969-187 directs customers to apply Cabrio® EG to various crops in order to treat 

diseases caused by phytopathogenic fungi. Ex. 21 at Table 2. 

VII. SPECIFIC INSTANCES OF IMPORTATION AND SALE 

35. Upon information and belief, Respondents manufacture outside of the United 

States, import, and sell after importation into the United States, products containing 

pyraclostrobin, including Sharda Boscalid 25.2% + Pyraclostrobin 12.8% WG (EPA Reg. No. 

83529-178), Sharda Boscalid 25.2% + Pyraclostrobin 12.8% WG II (EPA Reg. No. 83529-

179), “Sharda Pyraclostrobin 20% WG,” PREACH™, “Sharda Pyraclostrobin 20% SC,” 

“Sharda Pyraclostrobin Technical,” in violation of Section 337. 

36. Sharda USA LLC’s website states that Sharda “registers and imports top quality 

technical actives for formulation and packaging within the US for distribution through local 

channel relationships.” Ex. 22. The website further states that “Sharda’s products are imported 

into the US in technial [sic] (active ingredient) form through established 3rd party manufacturers 

then formulated and packaged for distribution into the US market. This ensures that Sharda 
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maintains the benefit of economics from established sources, combined with the high quality 

standards in formulation and packaging for their US customer demands.” Id. 

37. Import records show that products containing pyraclostrobin, including 

PREACH™, have been imported by Sharda into the United States. See Ex. 24. Exhibit 24 

includes extracted text from a report obtained from online database, ImportKey. It identifies a 

shipment of “SHARDA PYRACLOSTROBIN 25% EC UN3082 CLASS 9”, arriving on May 26, 

2021 in Long Beach, California. Ex. 24 at row 2. The entry indicates that the goods were shipped 

from Shanghai, China by Sharda Cropchem Limited and were received by Sharda USA LLC. Id. 

It also identifies nine shipments of “PREACH PYRACLOSTROBIN 250G-L EC UN NO 2902 

CLASS No. 6.1” arriving on February 5, 2021 in Tacoma, Washington. Ex. 24 at rows 3-11. The 

entries indicate that the goods were shipped from Shanghai, China by Sharda Cropchem Limited 

and were received by UAP Co. Nutrien AG. Id. This record therefore shows that on May 26, 

2021, Respondents imported certain products containing pyraclostrobin into the United States. 

VIII. CLASSIFICATION OF THE INFRINGING PRODUCTS UNDER THE 
HARMONIZED TARIFF SCHEDULE 

38. On information and belief, the Accused Products may be classified under at 

least one of the following headings of the Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the United States: 

3808.92.15, 3808.92.28, 3808.92.50, 3808.92.80. These classifications are not intended to 

restrict the scope of any exclusion order or other remedy ordered by the Commission. 

IX. THE DOMESTIC INDUSTRY RELATING TO THE ASSERTED PATENTS 

39. BASF has a domestic industry, as defined under 19 U.S.C. § 1337(a)(3)(A), 

(B), and (C), comprising significant investments in plant and equipment, significant 

investments in the employment of labor and capital, and substantial investments in the 
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exploitation of the ’392 patent, including engineering and research and development. BASF 

practices the ’392 patent and has invested in domestic industry activities with respect to 

products protected by the ’392 patent.  

A. Technical Prong 

40. BASF has developed dozens of products that practice the ‘392 patent. BASF began 

the development of these products more than two decades ago. Indeed, by September 30, 2002, 

BASF received a registration from the EPA for its pyraclostrobin technical product (“BASF 

Pyraclostrobin Technical”) under EPA Registration No. 7969-185 for use in fungicide 

formulations. The active ingredient in BASF Pyraclostrobin Technical is pyraclostrobin. 

41. On October 3, 2007, BASF received a registration from the EPA for its “BAS 500 

F Crystalline” product (“BAS 500 F Crystalline”) under EPA Registration No. 7969-258 for use 

in fungicide formulations. The active ingredient in BAS 500 F Crystalline is pyraclostrobin. 

42. On October 5, 2021, BASF received a registration from the EPA for its 

“Pyraclostrobin Dry Crystalline 1” product under EPA Registration No. 7969-463 for use in 

fungicide formulations. The active ingredient in BASF Pyraclostrobin Dry Crystalline 1 is 

pyraclostrobin.   

43. Beginning on September 30, 2002 and over the next 10 years, BASF has received 

several registrations from the EPA or equivalent agencies in foreign jurisdictions for its end-use 

products comprising pyraclostrobin as the fungicidal ingredient under EPA Registration Nos (or 

equivalents in foreign jurisdictions).  

Domestic Industry Products Registration No. 

Headline® SC EPA 7969-289 

Headline® AMP EPA 7969-291 
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Domestic Industry Products Registration No. 

Priaxor® SC Xemium® EPA 7969-311 

Merivon® Xemium® EPA 7969-310 

Veltyma™ EPA 7969-409 

Revytek™ EPA 7969-406 

Pristine® EPA 7969-199 

Cabrio® EG EPA 7969-187 

Navicon ® Intrinsic® EPA 7969-403 

Lexicon® Intrinsic® EPA 7969-350 

Insignia® EPA 7969-184 

Insignia® SC Intrinsic® EPA 7969-290 

Empress™ Intrinsic® EPA 7969-355 

Orkestra® Intrinsic® EPA 7969-370 

Pillar® G Intrinsic® EPA 7969-304 

Pageant® Intrinsic® EPA 7969-251 

Honor® Intrinsic® EPA 7969-255 

Obvius®  EPA 7969-371 

Obvius® Plus EPA 7969-426 

Acceleron® D-109 EPA 7969-266-264 

Acceleron® DX-109 EPA 7969-266-524 

Stamina® EPA 7969-266 

Stamina® F4 EPA 7969-399 

Teraxxa™ F4 EPA 7969-419 

Dyax® 32746 (Canada) 

Bellis® 03798 (Ireland) 

Insure® Pulse 32011 (Canada) 

Insure® Cereal 30685 (Canada) 

Comet® 10875 (UK) 

Delit® PD20171588 (China) 

Delit® Pro 014-02-874-1 (Russia) 

 
44. The Domestic Industry Products are covered by or made by a process covered 

by claims 1-17 of the ’392 patent. Representative claim charts demonstrating that Domestic 
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Industry Products practice independent claim 1 are attached as Confidential Ex. 6C. The 

underlying documents used in these claim charts are attached as Confidential Exs. 15, 19, 21, 

23, 27, 35C, 37-60. 

B. Economic Prong 

45. BASF is the world’s leading chemical company. The approximately 122,000 

employees in the BASF Group work on contributing to the success of its customers in nearly all 

sectors and almost every country in the world. BASF Corp., headquartered in Florham Park, New 

Jersey, is the North American affiliate of BASF SE, Ludwigshafen, Germany. BASF Corp. has 

approximately 17,000 employees in North America and had sales of $18.7 billion in 2020. 

46. BASF has long been a pioneer in agricultural and crop protection products aimed 

at enhancing yields and benefitting farmers in the United States and abroad. To this end, BASF 

has developed, manufactured, and marketed dozens of fungicidal products, including seed 

treatments and sprays used for fungal disease control and enhancing plant health. BASF’s 

fungicidal products are the cornerstone of its Agricultural Solutions segment and provide best-in-

class solutions for farmers. 

47. As set forth above, dozens of these BASF products practice the ’392 patent. As set 

forth below, BASF manufactures these products in the United States. In so doing, BASF has 

incurred major domestic investments in plant, equipment, labor, capital, research, and 

development. 

1. Significant Investment in Plant and Equipment 

48. Since 1984, BASF has operated a manufacturing facility in Sparks, Georgia, 

consisting of six plants. The vast majority of the Domestic Industry Products are manufactured at 

Sparks. BASF has incurred significant investment in plant and equipment at the Sparks facility to 
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manufacture the Domestic Industry Products. For example, as of the end of 2020, BASF had 

incurred capital investments of $39.6 million at the Sparks facility, and $734,000 in real estate 

and personal property taxes. See Ex. 25. 

2. Significant Employment of Labor and Capital 

49. BASF has incurred significant investment in labor and capital at the Sparks 

facility, where the Domestic Industry Products are manufactured. The facility employs over 145 

people and had an annual payroll of $9.6 million as of the end of 2020. See Ex. 25. 

50. BASF’s investments in labor and capital related to the domestic manufacture of the 

Domestic Industry Products are discussed in more detail in the accompanying Confidential 

Declaration of Neil Bentley (Ex. 26C). 

3. Substantial Investment in Exploitation Through Engineering and 
Research & Development 

51. BASF has incurred substantial investments in the exploitation of the ’392 patent, 

including through engineering and research development. For example, BASF employs technical 

personnel at the Sparks facility to commercially develop the Domestic Industry Products. BASF 

has also incurred substantial investments in registrational trials for the Domestic Industry 

Products, as required by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Finally, BASF continues to 

make investments in the research and development of new products that will practice the ’392 

patent.  

52. BASF’s investments in engineering and research and development related to the 

exploitation of the ’392 patent are discussed in more detail in the accompanying Confidential 

Declaration of Neil Bentley (Exhibit 26C). 
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X. RELATED LITIGATION AND PATENT OFFICE PROCEEDINGS 

53. On February 1, 2018, BASF Corporation brought a complaint before the U.S. 

District Court for the District of Colorado alleging that Willowood, LLC, Willowood USA, LLC, 

Willowood Limited, and Greenfields Marketing, Limited’s (collectively, “Defendants” or 

“Willowood”) products infringed the ’392 patent and another patent not at issue in this 

Complaint. BASF Corp. v. Willowood, LLC, No. 1:18-cv-00268 (D. Colo.). On March 5, 2019, 

the district court stayed the case after the Defendants filed voluntary petitions for relief under 

Chapter 11 of the U.S. Code in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Colorado. 

BASF Corporation and Willowood filed a Stipulation of Dismissal on October 29, 2020 agreeing 

that all claims, counterclaims, and affirmative defenses be dismissed without prejudice. The 

district court entered an order terminating the case on November 2, 2020.  

54. On May 15, 2018, Willowood USA, LLC filed a petition for inter partes review of 

claims 1-17 of the ’392 patent. Willowood USA, LLC v. BASF SE, IPR2018-01096 (P.T.A.B. 

Nov. 29, 2018). BASF SE filed a preliminary patent owner response. On November 29, 2018, the 

U.S. Patent Trial and Appeal Board issued a decision denying institution. The decision denying 

institution construed certain claim terms and concluded that Willowood USA, LLC’s petition 

failed to demonstrate a reasonable likelihood that it would prevail with respect to even one claim 

challenged in the petition.  

55. On January 31, 2022, concurrent with the filing of this ITC Investigation, BASF 

brought a complaint before the U.S. District Court for the District of Delaware alleging that 

Sharda Cropchem Ltd. and Sharda USA LLC infringe the ’392 patent.   

56. BASF is not aware of any other related litigation or patent office proceeding. 
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XI. RELIEF REQUESTED 

57. Complainants respectfully request that the Commission: 

(a) Institute an investigation pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, 

as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337, with respect to the proposed Respondents’ violations of that 

section arising from the importation into the United States, sale for importation, and/or the sale 

within the United States after importation of certain Products Containing Pyraclostrobin and 

Components Thereof that infringe the ’392 patent; 

(b) Schedule and conduct a hearing pursuant to Section 337(c) for the purposes 

of (i) receiving evidence and hearing argument concerning whether there has been a violation of 

Section 337, and (ii) following the hearing, determine that there has been a violation of Section 

337; 

(c) Issue a permanent limited exclusion order directed to products 

manufactured by or for the proposed Respondents, their subsidiaries, related companies and 

agents pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337(d) excluding entry into the United States of certain Products 

Containing Pyraclostrobin and Components Thereof that infringe one or more claims of the ’392 

patent; 

(d) Issue a permanent cease and desist order pursuant to 19 U.S.C. 

§ 1337(f) prohibiting the proposed Respondents, their subsidiaries, related companies and 

agents from conducting any of the following activities in the United States: importing, 

selling, marketing, advertising, distributing, offering for sale, transferring (except for 

exportation), soliciting United States agents or distributors, or aiding and abetting other 

entities in the importation, sale for importation, sale after importation, marketing, 

advertising, transfer (except for exportation), or distribution of certain Products Containing 
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Pyraclostrobin and Components Thereof that infringe one or more claims of the ’392 patent; 

(e) Impose a bond upon importation of certain Products Containing 

Pyraclostrobin and Components Thereof that infringe one or more claims of the ’392 patent 

sufficient to protect Complainants from injury during the 60-day Presidential review period 

pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337(j); and 

(f) Issue such other and further relief as the Commission deems just and 

proper under the law, based on the facts determined by the investigation and the authority of 

the Commission. 

 
Dated: January 28, 2022    Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
  /s/ Anish R. Desai                      ! 

Elizabeth S. Weiswasser 
Anish R. Desai 
Anna E. Dwyer 
Caleb Small 
WEIL, GOTSHAL & MANGES LLP 
767 5th Avenue 
New York, NY 10153 
Telephone: (212) 310-8000 
 
Robert T. Vlasis III 
Priyata Y. Patel 
WEIL, GOTSHAL & MANGES LLP 
2001 M Street NW, Suite 600 
Washington, DC 20036 
Telephone: (202) 682-7000 
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VERIFICATION OF COMPLAINT 

I, Karen Ware, declare, in accordance with 19 C.F.R. §§ 210.4 and 210.12(a), under 

penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America, that the following statements 

are true and correct: 

1. I am an Associate General Counsel for BASF Corp., and I am duly authorized to sign this

Complaint on behalf of Complainant;

2. I have read the foregoing Complaint and am aware of its contents;

3. To the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, based upon reasonable inquiry, the

foregoing Complaint is well-founded in fact and is warranted by existing law or by a non

frivolous argument for the extension, modification, or reversal of existing law or the

establishment of new law;

4. The allegations or other factual contentions have evidentiary support or are likely to have

evidentiary support after a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or discovery;

and

5. The foregoing Complaint is not being filed for any improper purpose, such as to harass or

to cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in the cost of litigation.

Dated: January 27, 2022 

 

Karen Ware 
Associate General Counsel 
Intellectual Property Legal Department, NA 
BASF Corp. 
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